
DIRECTORS 

NICK BRUNO, PRESIDENT 

JEFFREY D. COULTHARD, Vice President 

Shannon Simonian, Treasurer 

ERIC BREAM 
MATT CERNIGLIA    

Mike DeLaGuerra 
Henk Griffin 

 
JULIA D. Stornetta, GENERAL MANAGER/secretary 

MIKE CUTTONE, Assistant treasurer 

BRIAN EHLERS, DISTRICT ENGINEER 

LAUREN D. LAYNE, LEGAL COUNSEL 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
will be held on 

Monday, July 10, 2023 
11:00 a.m. 

at 
The Lodge at Riverstone 
370 Lodge Road South 

Madera, California 93636 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Members of the public may address the Board on any matter related to the District that is 
not included on the Agenda. Comments are limited to five (5) minutes per person. 

 
3. POTENTIAL CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 

 
(Any Board member who has a potential conflict of interest may now identify the item 
and recuse himself or herself from discussing and voting on the matter.) 

 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR – Review and Consider for Action: 

 
a. Approval of minutes of the Special Board Meeting on June 12, 2023. 
b. Acceptance of the financial statements for the month of May 2023. 
c. Approval of customer installment payment plans for delinquent accounts. 

 
5. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
(Members of the Board or Staff may provide comment on any timely matter related to the 
District that is not included on the agenda.)



 
6. BOARD ACTION ITEMS - The Board may take action on any of the following items: 

 
a. Water Supply Contingency Plan – Review and take action to adopt a District 

Water Supply Contingency Plan. 
 

b.  Agricultural System Expansion – Review and consider action to approve a 
change order in the amount of $49,800.92. 
 

c. ACWA Appointment – Review and consider action to appoint District Counsel 
Lauren Layne to the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Legal 
Affairs and State Legislature Committees. 

 
d. Storm Drain Facility Agreement – Review and consider action to authorize 

the board president to sign an agreement with BN Riverstone 2 LP related to 
storm drain facilities. 

 
 

7. DISTRICT ENGINEER’S REPORT - The Board may take action on any of the following 
items: 

 
a. Operations Monthly Report 
b. Other District Matters 

 
8. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT – The Board may take action on any of the following items: 

 
a. Legislation 
b. Other District Matters 

 
9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – The Board may take action on any of the following 

items: 
 

a. Monthly Operations 
b. Other District Matters 

 
 

10. COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT (CFD) – The Root Creek Water District Board of 
Directors acting as the Board of Directors of the Community Facilities District may take 
action on any of the following items: 
 

a. Review and consider action to adopt Resolution of Intention No. 2023-7-10a to 
establish Community Facilities District No. 2023-1 and to authorize the levy of a 
special tax.  

 
i. Rate and Method of Apportionment 
ii. Boundary 

 
b. Review and consider action to adopt Resolution of Intention 2023-7-10b to incur 

bond indebtedness within Community Facilities District No. 2023-1 of the Root 
Creek Water District. 
 

11. ADJOURN 
 



 
▪ Items on the Agenda may be taken in any order. 
▪ Action may be taken on any item listed on the Agenda. 
▪ Writings relating to open session Agenda items that are distributed to members of the Board of Directors 
will be available for inspection at the District office, excluding writings that are not public records or are 
exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Acts. 
▪ ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
A person with a qualifying disability under the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 may request the 
District to provide a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in any public 
meeting of the District. Such assistance includes appropriate alternative formats for the agendas and 
agenda packets used for any public meetings of the District. Requests for such assistance and for 
agendas and agenda packets shall be made in person, by telephone, or by written correspondence to the 
District at (559) 970-8778 or P.O. Box 27950, Fresno, California 93729, at least 48 hours before a District 
meeting. 



 

 
  

  

DIRECTORS 
NICK BRUNO, PRESIDENT 

JEFFREY D. COULTHARD, Vice President 

SHANNON SIMONIAN, Treasurer 

ERIC BREAM 

MATTHEW CERNIGILIA 
Henk griffin 

MIKE DELAGUERRA 
  

JULIA D. STORNETTA, GENERAL MANAGER 
MIKE CUTTONE, Assistant treasurer 

BRIAN EHLERS, DISTRICT ENGINEER 

LAUREN D. LAYNE, LEGAL COUNSEL 

 
  
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Root Creek Water District 

held on  
 June 12, 2023  

 
 

1. Call to Order  
The board meeting for the Root Creek Water District (RCWD) was called to order at 
11:02 a.m. by President Nick Bruno. Board members present were Nick Bruno, Jeff 
Coulthard, Shannon Simonian, Mike DelaGuerra, Eric Bream and Henk Griffin.  Board 
members absent were Matthew Cerniglia.  Members of the public included Julia 
Stornetta, Lauren Layne, Nicole Stornetta, Heather Bashian, Brian Ehlers, and Craig 
Armstrong. 
 

2. Public Comment  
The district received no public comment.   

 
3. Potential Conflicts of interest  

There were no potential conflicts of interest. 
 

4. Consent Calendar  
A motion was made by Director DelaGuerra, seconded by Director Coulthard to approve 
the minutes from the May 8, 2023 board meeting and to accept the April 2023 financials, 
with a change to item 6e. of the minutes to indicate that the motion was made by Director 
Coulthard and seconded by Director Cerniglia.  The motion carried. 
 

5. Correspondence 
There was no correspondence. 

 
6. Board Action Items 

a. District Treasurer Appointment – Board President Bruno appointed Director 
Simonian as new Board Treasurer, and this was seconded by Director Griffin. The 
motion carried. 

b. District Policy Regarding Construction of Facilities – Director Simonian made a 
motion, seconded by Director Griffin, to adopt a revied policy related the to the 
construction of facilities and the relinquishment of connection fees in proportion to 
construction costs, at such a time that the district determines it is feasible to do so. 

c. District Policy Regarding Water Use During Construction of Residential Homes 
– Director DelaGuerra made a motion, seconded by Director Coulthard, to adopt a 



 

 

policy to address the provision and payment for services per residential or 
commercial lot in the course of construction.  The policy requires builders to report 
escrow closings on a regular basis to the district for the purpose of establishing 
customer billing. 

 
7. District Engineers Report 

The district currently has1,523 total connections, of those 1,420 are residential.  Field 
staff continue to install residential meters as they are shipped, and we anticipate a 
shipment of 100 meters arriving this month.  The district temporarily halted surface water 
deliveries mid-May to repair a joint in the pipeline in the vicinity of Root Creek.  BSK is 
preparing a report resulting from a investigation of compaction and soil moisture content 
at the site of distress above the RCWD facility at Road 40.  Preliminary results point to 
native water present from local runoff.   
Municipal Well #1 meter is not reliably operable, and a new meter has been on order for 
several months.  As a result, the district continues to estimate water use through 
intermittent meter readings and by running the well concurrently with Well #2, with 
identical settings to quantify water developed. 
A Water Contingency Plan is now required to be in place @ 1,000 connections instead of 
@ 3,000 connections.  Staff will draft a plan for review at the July board of directors 
meeting. 
Sewer flows were reduced from April to May.  The new dewatering equipment is on site 
and working, and July 16th is the Dry Pac completion date. 
Well 277 request for proposals is on schedule to be released this week.  Groundwater 
Blending Facility request for proposals is also currently out to solicit bids and will close 
July 13th.  

8. Legal Counsel Report 
 
Counselor Craig Armstrong reported that AB1637, AB460, SB389 are moving through 
the California legislative process. 

 

9.  General Manager’s Report 
The number of building permits had not been reported by Madera County at the time of 
meeting. Budget planning is beginning, and Director Simonian (Treasurer) will be added 
as a member of the Budget Committee. Staff has been finalizing a cash flow projection 
and analysis as it relates to facilities construction dollars required and anticipated in the 
future. Administrative staff has coordinated over the last month to update the district 
website and develop policy addressing customer service and billing. 

 
10. Community Facilities District (CFD)   

a. Director Simonian made a motion, seconded by Director DelaGuerra to adopt 
Resolution of Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 Improvement Area No. 1 
authorizing the annual levy of special taxes for fiscal year 2023/2024 in the amount of 
$410,151.60. 



 

 

b. Director DelaGuerra made a motion, seconded by Director Simonian to adopt 
Resolution of Community Facilities District No. 2016-1 Improvement Area No. 2 
authorizing the annual levy of special taxes for fiscal year 2023/2024 in the amount of 
$896,453.20. 

11. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned unanimously at 11:53 am. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Julia D. Stornetta, District Secretary 























 
 

Root Creek Water District 
 

Water Supply Contingency Plan 
 

 
July 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Root Creek WD-1249\Ongoing\400 Water Treatment and Dist Sys\404 Water Shortages\WSCP\2023_0630 Final Root Creek WSCP.docx 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Report Prepared for: 

Root Creek Water District 

Avenue 12 and Highway 41 
Madera, CA 93636 
 
Contact: 
Julia Stornetta  
(559) 283-8011 
 
Plan Effective Date: June 30, 2023 
 
Report Prepared by: 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

Heather Bashian, PE 
Brittney Darnell 
 
Contact: 
Heather Bashian, PE 
(559) 449-2700 
 

COPYRIGHT 2023 by PROVOST & PRITCHARD CONSULTING GROUP 
 ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group expressly reserves its common law copyright and other applicable property rights to this 
document.  This document is not to be reproduced, changed, or copied in any form or manner whatsoever, nor are they to be 
assigned to a third party without first obtaining the written permission and consent of Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  In the 
event of unauthorized reuse of the information contained herein by a third party, the third party shall hold the firm of Provost & 
Pritchard Consulting Group harmless, and shall bear the cost of Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group's legal fees associated with 
defending and enforcing these rights. 



  Root Creek Water District 

2023 Water Supply Contingency Plan 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  iii  

Table of Contents 
1 Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent........................................................................................... 1 

2 Public Involvement ............................................................................................................................... 1 

3 Public Education ................................................................................................................................... 1 

4 Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups ........................................................................... 1 

5 Authorization ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

6 Application ........................................................................................................................................... 2 

7 Definitions ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

8 Summary of Drought Response Stages and Response Actions ............................................................ 3 

9 Drought Response Triggers .................................................................................................................. 4 

9.1 Requirements for Initiation ......................................................................................................... 5 

9.1.1 Stage 1: Up to 10% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Watch) ....................................... 5 

9.1.2 Stage 2: Up to 20% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Warning) .................................... 5 

9.1.3 Stage 3: Up to 30% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Acute) ........................................ 5 

9.1.4 Stage 4: Up to 40% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Critical) ...................................... 5 

9.1.5 Stage 5: Up to 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Emergency)................................ 5 

9.1.6 Stage 6: Greater than 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Catastrophic) ................. 6 

9.2 Requirements for Termination – All Stages ................................................................................ 6 

10 Drought Response Stages ..................................................................................................................... 6 

10.1 Notification ................................................................................................................................. 6 

10.2 Public Safety Contacts ................................................................................................................. 6 

10.3 Support Services Contacts .......................................................................................................... 7 

10.4 Response Actions by Water Shortage Stage ............................................................................... 7 

10.4.1 Stage 1: Up to 10% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Watch)................................... 7 

10.4.2 Stage 2: Up to 20% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Warning) ............................... 8 

10.4.3 Stage 3: Up to 30% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Acute) .................................... 9 

10.4.4 Stage 4: Up to 40% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Critical) .................................. 9 

10.4.5 Stage 5: Up to 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Emergency) ......................... 10 

10.4.6 Stage 6: Greater than 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Catastrophic) ........... 11 

10.5 Response Actions by Water Shortage Stage ............................................................................. 11 

10.6 Catastrophic Replacement Water Supply for Water Outages .................................................. 12 



  Root Creek Water District 

2023 Water Supply Contingency Plan 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  iv  

10.7 Catastrophic Notification of Emergency Service Providers ...................................................... 13 

11 Enforcement ....................................................................................................................................... 13 

11.1 Penalties, Charges, Other Enforcement or Prohibitions ........................................................... 13 

11.1.1 Education and Communication Programs ............................................................... 14 

11.1.2 Water Waste Patrols and Irrigation Malfunctions ................................................... 14 

12 Variances ............................................................................................................................................ 14 

 

List of Tables 
Table 9-1. Stage of Water Shortage Contingency Plan ................................................................................. 4 

Table 10-1. Public Safety Contacts ................................................................................................................ 7 

Table 10-2. Support Services Contacts ......................................................................................................... 7 

Table 10-3. Single Family Residential Water Allocation Plan...................................................................... 11 

Table 11-1. Enforcement Measures ............................................................................................................ 14 

 

Abbreviations 
Board ...................................................................................................................... RCWD Board of Directors 

District or RCWD .................................................................................................... Root Creek Water District 

DWR ............................................................................................................ Department of Water Resources 

GM....................................................................................................................................... General Manager 

GSP .............................................................................................................. Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

IRWM .................................................................. Madera County Integrated Regional Water Management 

OES ........................................................................................ Madera County Offices of Emergency Services 

PWS .................................................................................................................................public water system 

RCWDGSA .................................................... Root Creek Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

WSCP ......................................................................................................... Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

 
 
 
 
 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  1  

1 Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent 
In order to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of public water system (PWS) 
supply facilities, with particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, to protect 
and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts of water supply 
shortage or other water supply emergency conditions, the Root Creek Water District (District or RCWD) 
hereby adopts the following regulations and restrictions on the delivery and consumption of water 
through this plan. 

Water uses regulated or prohibited under this Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP or Plan) are 
considered to be non-essential and continuation of such uses during times of water shortage or other 
emergency water supply condition are deemed to constitute a waste of water subjecting the offender(s) 
to penalties as defined in Section 11 of the WSCP. 

Water System Information 

The District provides water to a continually expanding community through metered residential, 
commercial, institutional, and industrial water services. The District presently obtains its water from 
three groundwater wells. 
 
In 2022, the District delivered approximately 150.4 million gallons. The maximum day demand from the 
community has not been quantified however in 2022 the maximum day demand was approximately 1.0 
million gallons, much of which went to filling the 1.0 million gallon storage tank.  The month with 
highest water usage is July.  

2 Public Involvement 
Opportunity for the public to provide input into the preparation of the Plan was provided by the District 
by means of public hearing on July 10, 2023. Final adoption of the WSCP occurred at a properly noticed 
RCWD Board of Directors (Board) meeting on July 10, 2023. 

3 Public Education 
The District will regularly provide the public with information about the WSCP, including information 
about the conditions under which each stage of the WSCP is to be initiated or terminated and the 
drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. Detailed information on public education 
is provided in Section 11 of the WSCP. 

4 Coordination with Regional Water Planning 
Groups 

The service area of the District is located within the San Joaquin Valley – Madera Subbasin and the 
District is the single member of the Root Creek Water District Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(RCWDGSA) and is a voting member of the Madera County Integrated Regional Water Management 
(IRWM) Group. The RCWDGSA works cooperatively with other GSAs within Madera County for water 
planning purposes. The District’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) and the Madera County IRWM 
Plan were considered in the development of the WSCP. A copy of the final Plan was shared with 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  2  

applicable regional water planning area(s) and posted on our website on https://rootcreekwd.com for 
public and local agency stakeholder review and use. 

5 Authorization 
The District’s General Manager (GM), or designee, is hereby authorized and directed to implement the 
applicable provisions of the WSCP upon determination that such implementation is necessary to protect 
public health, safety, and welfare. The GM, or designee, shall have the authority to initiate or terminate 
drought or other water supply emergency response measures as described in this WSCP. The contact 
information for the GM is: (559) 283-8011. 

6 Application 
The provisions of this WSCP shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing water provided 
by the District. The terms “person” and “customer” as used in the WSCP may include individuals, 
corporations, partnerships, associations, and all other legal entities. 

7 Definitions 
For the purposes of this Plan, the following definitions shall apply: 

 Aesthetic water use: water use for ornamental or decorative purposes such as fountains, 
reflecting pools, and water gardens. 

 Commercial and Institutional water use: water use which is integral to the operations of 
commercial and non-profit establishments and governmental entities such as schools, hospitals, 
clinics, retail establishments, hotels and motels, restaurants, and office buildings. 

 Conservation: those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the consumption of 
water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in the use of water or increase 
the recycling and reuse of water so that a supply is conserved and made available for future or 
alternative uses. 

 Customer: any person, company, or organization using water supplied by District 
 Domestic water use: water use for personal needs or for household or sanitary purposes such as 

drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, sanitation, or for cleaning a residence, business, industry, or 
institution. 

 Even number address: street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers ending in 0, 
2, 4, 6, or 8 and locations without addresses. 

 Industrial water use: the use of water in processes designed to convert materials of lower value 
into forms having greater usability and value. 

 Landscape irrigation use: water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped areas, 
whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial lawns, gardens, golf 
courses, parks, rights-of-way and medians. 

 Non-essential water use: water uses that are not essential nor required for the protection of 
public, health, safety, and welfare, including: 

o irrigation of landscape areas, including parks, athletic fields, and golf courses, except 
otherwise provided under this Plan; 

o use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer, airplane or other 
vehicle; 

o use of water to wash down any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis 
courts, or other hard-surfaced areas; 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  3  

o use of water to wash down buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate 
fire protection; 

o flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or street; 
o use of water to fill, refill, or add to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or Jacuzzi-type 

pools; 
o use of water in a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes except where 

necessary to support aquatic life; 
o failure to repair a controllable leak(s) within a reasonable period after having been given 

notice directing the repair of such leak(s); and 
o use of water from hydrants for construction purposes or any other purposes other than 

firefighting or hauling water for a domestic water use. 
 Odd numbered address: street addresses, box numbers, or rural postal route numbers ending in 

1, 3, 5, 7, or 9.  

8 Summary of Drought Response Stages and 
Response Actions 

The GM, or designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions on a weekly basis and shall 
determine when conditions warrant initiation or termination of each stage of the WSCP, that is, when 
the specified “triggers” are reached. 

The triggering and termination criteria described in subsequent sections of this document are based on 
or more of the following: 

 Groundwater well production capacities relative to total well production capacity of the water 
system current at the time of triggering evaluation; 

 Groundwater level decline in greater amounts than anticipated by the GSP; 
 Availability of surface water supplies; 
 Projected drought conditions on Department of Water Resources (DWR) California Water Watch 

Tool (https://cww.water.ca.gov); 
 County, State or Federal Drought Emergency Orders; or 
 Emergencies such as fire, earthquake, etc. resulting in potential water outages 

The response actions described in subsequent sections of this document are based on the following 
general precepts: 

 Conservation techniques employed include progressively implementing stricter water use 
policies, primarily focused on outdoor irrigation and increasingly restrictive water use in 
business functions. In natural disaster type scenarios, water supplies are limited based on a per 
capita per day scenario. 

 Public notification vehicles include notices via the District’s website, billing inserts, social media 
posts, and potentially house-to-house outreach depending on severity and immediacy of the 
water shortage occurrence. 

 The District may coordinate with the County of Madera, and the State Water Resources Control 
Board’s Division of Drinking Water, when necessary. In the event of severe water shortages, the 
District may also coordinate with County of Madera, Offices of Emergency Services (OES), 
community partners, and critical users. 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  4  

9 Drought Response Triggers 
The District has six triggering stages which correspond to water shortage levels. The water shortage 
levels are defined based on the percent reduction in available water supply when compared to a typical 
year. Each water shortage level has an accompanying goal for water consumption reduction varying 
from 10% to more than 50%. The six (6) stages are shown in Table 9-1. Total available water production 
includes any combination of the District’s water supply sources. At any time, a State or Federal mandate 
may require the District to enact a more stringent stage than they would otherwise based solely on 
available water production, such as State-wide conservation measures mandated in 2015. 

Table 9-1. Stage of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

Stage 
Water Supply  
Condition [1] 

Drought 
Conditions [2] 

Targeted Demand 
Reduction 

Stage Termination 
Requirements 

1: Watch 
Total available water production 
is within 10% of estimated firm 
supply capacity [3] 

Moderate 
10% of normal 
water demands [4] 

Each Stage may be 
terminated when all 
initiation triggers 
have ceased for 10 
consecutive days. 
 
Upon each Stage 
being terminated, 
the prior stage is 
automatically 
initiated unless 
otherwise specified. 

2: Warning 
Total available water production 
is within 20% of estimated firm 
supply capacity 

Severe 
20% of normal 
water demands 

3: Acute 
Total available water production 
is within 30% of estimated firm 
supply capacity 

Extreme 
30% of normal 
water demands 

4: Critical 
Total available water production 
is within 40% of estimated firm 
supply capacity 

State or Federal 
Drought 

Emergency 
Declared 

40% of normal 
water demands 

5: 
Emergency 

Total available water production 
is within 50% of estimated firm 
supply capacity 

50% of normal 
water demands 

6: 
Catastrophic 
[5] 

Total available water production 
is less than 50% of estimated 
firm supply capacity 

more than 50% of 
normal water 
demands 

Notes: 
[1] Causes of decrease include but are not limited to natural disasters, droughts, and contamination. 
[2] Drought conditions as shown on the DWR California Water Watch drought maps 
[3] Firm supply capacity is determined by totaling the water supply capacity of the water system and removing the largest 
producing groundwater well 
[4] For purposes of this Plan, ‘normal water demands’ equate to the water demand of the user for the same period the prior year, 
so long as the prior year was not in a water shortage stage declaration greater than Stage 1. For users without prior water usage 
data, nearby similar users will be the basis for comparison.  
[5] Stage 6: Catastrophic triggers may also include earthquakes, fire emergencies, or other direct threat to water infrastructure 
resulting in a decrease of water supply by more than 50%.  



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  5  

9.1 Requirements for Initiation 

9.1.1 Stage 1: Up to 10% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Watch) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 Water production is up to 10% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of 10%. 

9.1.2 Stage 2: Up to 20% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Warning) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 water production is up to 20% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of 20%. 

9.1.3 Stage 3: Up to 30% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Acute) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 water production is up to 30% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of 30% 
 Second year of State-declared drought conditions. 

9.1.4 Stage 4: Up to 40% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Critical) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 Water production is up to 40% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of 40% 
 Third year of State-declared drought conditions. 

9.1.5 Stage 5: Up to 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Emergency) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 Water production is up to 50% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of 50% 
 Fourth year of State-declared drought conditions 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  6  

9.1.6 Stage 6: Greater than 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply 
(Catastrophic) 

Customers shall be required to comply with the requirements and restrictions on certain non-essential 
water uses provided in Section 10 of this Plan when: 

 Water production is greater than 50% less than estimated firm supply capacity 
 State mandated water use reductions of greater than 50% 
 Fifth year of State-declared drought conditions 
 Water production limited by catastrophic event 

9.2 Requirements for Termination – All Stages 
Each Stage may be terminated when all initiation triggers have ceased for 10 consecutive days. Upon 
each Stage being terminated, the prior stage is automatically initiated unless otherwise specified  

10 Drought Response Stages 
Demand reduction measures are strategies intended to decrease water demand to close the gap 
between supply and demand. The District will identify a variety of demand reductions actions to offset 
supply shortages. Demand reduction actions available to the District that may be considered during 
water shortage conditions are summarized in subsections below. Although it is difficult estimate the 
volume of savings for each action, the District expects to meet required reductions through a 
combination of response actions in conjunction with outreach and communication efforts to the extent 
necessary to mitigate any impacts from a water shortage. 

10.1 Notification 
The GM, or designee, shall notify the public by means of one of the following methods: 

Method 1. Notification on the District website 
Method 2. Public notice in the Madera Tribune 
Method 3. Notice on local English and Spanish-speaking radio stations 
Method 4. Direct mailing distributed in the next billing cycle 
Method 5. Phone call to critical water users 
Method 5. Door to door notification, if immediate action is required 
Method 7. County Emergency messaging text or bulletin alert, if necessary 

10.2 Public Safety Contacts 
The GM, or designee, shall notify directly the following individuals and entities of restrictions or water 
shortages, as defined in the subsections below, as appropriate for each response stage. 
  



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  7  

Table 10-1. Public Safety Contacts 

Organization or 
Department 

Name & Position Telephone Email 

Madera County Fire N/A   (559) 675-7799 N/A 

Root Creek Water 
District 

Julia Stornetta, 
General Manager 

(559) 970-8778 julia@rootcreekwd.com 

County Office of 
Emergency Services 

Emergency Response 
Team 

(559) 675-7770 N/A 

State Water 
Resources Control 

Board 
 Shawn Demmers (559) 447-3136 shawn.demmers@waterboards.ca.gov  

Critical Water Users: 
Golden Valley Unified 

School District 

Office of Maintenance, 
Operations & Grounds 

(559) 645-3570 https://www.gvusd.org/apps/contact/  

10.3 Support Services Contacts 
The following is a list of support services that may be appropriate for a water shortage emergency. 

Table 10-2. Support Services Contacts 

Organization or 
Department 

Name & Position Telephone Email 

Community Service 
Partner: Self-Help 

Enterprises 
Emergency Services (559) 802-1685 N/A  

10.4 Response Actions by Water Shortage Stage 
The first step in a demand reduction program is to prohibit wasteful practices and provide enforcement 
methods. The District currently does not have a water conservation plan in place to guide its residents in 
a water shortage scenario. The following section describes prohibitions and the water shortage level in 
which they may be enacted. The GM, or their designee, can elect to choose all or a portion of each 
measure, as they deem appropriate. 

10.4.1 Stage 1: Up to 10% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Watch) 

Stage 1 addresses water shortages of up to 10% reduction require a voluntary demand reduction effort. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign begins utilizing billing inserts. 
 Monitor groundwater well production capacity and alert GM of any noticeable decline without 

justifiable reason. 
 Decrease flushing from regular flushing routine to and, only as-needed basis, for color or other 

water quality issues. 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  8  

 Limit construction water sales to contractors. 
 Initiate a water loss audit to evaluate potential areas for limiting water loss. 

Voluntary Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 A public information campaign is enacted in which the water shortage situation is explained 
along with potential upcoming stages of the water shortage, and what may be expected in the 
future. Information about methods to save water is sent to customers along with the notice for 
voluntary conservation of water. 

 Landscape watering shall only occur between the hours of 7 p.m. and 10 a.m. 
 Water waste, as determined by the Director, includes excessive runoff from landscape irrigation, 

washing automobiles with hoses without self-closing nozzles, evaporative coolers overflowing, 
and leaks not being repaired in a timely manner. 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1, 2, and 5 to be utilized on a monthly basis. 

10.4.2 Stage 2: Up to 20% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Warning) 

Stage 2 addresses water shortages of 10-20% reduction and requires a mandatory demand reduction 
effort. All actions listed below are in addition to the previous stage unless a stricter restriction applies 
and is noted. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign continues utilizing billing inserts, and social 
media posts. 

 Monitor groundwater well production capacity and alert GM of any noticeable decline without 
justifiable reason. 

 Increase groundwater level monitoring to weekly. 
 Decrease flushing from regular flushing routine to and, only as-needed basis, for color or other 

water quality issues. 
 Expand water loss auditing efforts to include leak detection surveys in areas with more than 15% 

water loss and perform necessary repairs. 

Mandatory Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 Public information dissemination continues. 
 Customers are informed that mandatory conservation of water will now be required. 
 Customers are asked to conserve 20 percent or more of their typical water use. 
 Landscape watering is restricted to three days per week. 
 The water use threshold for the higher rate may be lowered from current levels to a volume 

indicated by the needed reduction for residential customer. These increased rates will be 
explained to customers along with water conservation strategies. 

 Enforcement of water waste and water conservation is continued. 

 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1, 2, and 5 to be utilized on a monthly basis. 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  9  

 Develop online tool for water waste complaint filing and response program. 

10.4.3 Stage 3: Up to 30% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Acute)  

Stage 3 addresses water shortage of 30% reduction and requires a mandatory demand reduction effort. 
All actions listed below are in addition to the previous stage unless a stricter restriction applies and is 
noted. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign continues utilizing billing inserts, social 
media posts, and radio and newspaper announcements. 

 Continue to monitor groundwater well production capacity and groundwater levels and alert 
GM of any noticeable decline without justifiable reason. 

 Continue to flush water system components on a decreased frequency and water loss auditing 
efforts. 

 Increase frequency and quantity of meter testing and repairs, as needed. 
 Implementation of the District’s Drought Rates may be initiated.  
 Prepare analysis for mitigation of water supply loss if decline continues. 

Mandatory Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 Customers are asked to conserve 30 percent or more of their typical water use. 
 Landscape watering is restricted to two days per week. 
 The District evaluates its water use for main flushing, street cleaning and landscaping to see if 

reductions are possible. The number of meters tested and repaired is increased. 
 Water waste patrols must be used in this level to patrol for non-compliance. 
 Pool covers are encouraged. No draining and refilling of pools is allowed. 
 No new potable connections are allowed unless the developer can offset the new expected 

water use by a one-to-one water savings in existing development. 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1 through 5 to be utilized on a monthly basis. 

10.4.4 Stage 4: Up to 40% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Critical) 

Stage 4 addresses water shortage of 40% reduction require a mandatory demand reduction effort. All 
actions listed below are in addition to the previous stage unless a stricter restriction applies and is 
noted. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign continues utilizing all forms of notification 
available, including door-to-door effort, if needed. 

 Continue to monitor groundwater well production capacity and groundwater levels and alert 
GM of any noticeable decline without justifiable reason. 

 Continue to flush water system components on a decreased frequency and water loss auditing 
efforts. 

 Increase frequency and quantity of meter testing and repairs, as needed. 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  10  

 Implementation of the District’s Drought Rates are initiated, if not already initiated with an 
earlier stage.  

 Prepare engineering documents to construct improvements to mitigate water supply loss, if 
possible.  

Mandatory Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 Customer are asked to conserve 40 percent or more of their typical water use. 
 Landscape watering restricted to one day per week except for drip irrigation systems. 
 No new water service connections are allowed. 
 Construction water usage is limited or prohibited for dust control, new main disinfection, and 

new home construction. 
 For Level 4 and above implementation, a resolution must be adopted that provides the specifics 

for a rationing program and additional water penalties. 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1 through 6 to be utilized on a monthly, or weekly basis, as appropriate. 

10.4.5 Stage 5: Up to 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply (Emergency) 

Stage 5 addresses water shortage of 50% reduction and requires a mandatory demand reduction effort, 
all actions listed below are in addition to the previous stage unless a stricter restriction applies and is 
noted. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign continues utilizing all forms of notification 
available, including door-to-door effort, if needed. 

 Continue to monitor groundwater well production capacity and groundwater levels and alert 
GM of any noticeable decline without justifiable reason. 

 Continue to flush water system components on a decreased frequency and water loss auditing 
efforts. 

 Increase frequency and quantity of meter testing and repairs, as needed. 
 Execute construction processes to construct improvements to mitigate water supply loss. 

Mandatory Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 Customer are asked to conserve 50 percent or more of their typical water use. 
 Landscape watering is restricted to one day per week or may be prohibited entirely. 
 All non-essential water use is prohibited. The definition of non-essential water use can be 

established by the Director and explained during the public information sessions in Stages 1 and 
2. 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1 through 6 to be utilized on a monthly or weekly basis, as appropriate. 
 Methods 7 and 8 to be utilized as appropriate. 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  11  

10.4.6 Stage 6: Greater than 50% Reduction of Firm Water Supply 
(Catastrophic) 

Stage 6 addresses water shortage of greater that 50% reduction and requires a mandatory system wide 
rationing. All actions listed below are in addition to the previous stage unless a stricter restriction 
applies and is noted. 

Best Management Practices for Supply Management: 

 Community information and notification campaign continues utilizing all forms of notification 
available, including door-to-door effort, if needed. 

 Continue to monitor groundwater well production capacity and groundwater levels and alert 
GM of any noticeable decline without justifiable reason. 

 Continue to flush water system components on a decreased frequency and water loss auditing 
efforts. 

 Water use data frequently reviewed and users found exceeding 50% of their normal water use 
may have their water service interrupted and be subject to fines. 

Mandatory Water Use Restrictions for Reducing Demand: 

 Customers are asked to conserve greater than 50 percent or more of their typical water use. 
 Landscape watering is prohibited entirely. 
 Water rationing may be required by all customers across the system. 
 Implementation of a partial system-wide shut down during portions of the day may be required. 

Notification Methods and Frequency 

 Methods 1 through 6 to be utilized on a monthly or weekly basis, as appropriate. 
 Methods 7 and 8 to be utilized as appropriate. 

10.5 Response Actions by Water Shortage Stage 
In the event that water shortage conditions threaten public health, safety, and welfare, the GM, or 
designee, is hereby authorized to allocate water according to the following water allocation plan: 

Single Family Residential  

The allocation to residential water customers residing in a single-family dwelling shall be as follows: 

Table 10-3. Single Family Residential Water Allocation Plan 

Persons per Household Gallons per Month 
1 or 2 1,410 – 2,820 
3 or 4 4,230 – 5,640 
5 or 6 7,050 – 8,460 

7 or greater  Requires written verification of any household usage 
greater than 9,000 gallons per month.  Allowable usage 
will be calculated using 47 gallons per person per day.  

 

 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  12  

Master-Metered Multi-Family Residential Customers 

The allocation to residential water customers billed from a master meter which jointly measures water 
to multiple permanent residential dwelling units (e.g., apartments, mobile homes, etc.) shall be 
allocated the same as single-family residential customers. 

Commercial Customers 

A monthly water allocation shall be established by the GM, or designee, for each nonresidential, 
nonindustrial commercial water customer who uses water for processing purposes. The allocation to 
nonresidential, nonindustrial commercial water customers shall be as follows: 40% of monthly water 
usage and no irrigation. All restaurants shall only provide water upon request, hotel must only wash 
linens upon exit of customers, and all commercial customers must post drought conservation 
messaging. 

10.6 Catastrophic Replacement Water Supply for 
Water Outages 

In the event that water outages occur, the following is the plan to provide alternative water for customers 
to meet public health need. 

Source of Alternative Water Supply: Bottled Water or Tanks/Hauled Water via SWRCB Funded 
programs 

Distribution of Alternative Water Supply: 

 

Tanks or bottled water pickup locations will be established 
at locations in the District, per the GM’s direction. 

Special Considerations for residents that 
are elderly, disabled, or lack 
transportation: 

Residents that meet these definitions may contact the 
District for delivery of bottled water to their home.  

Special Considerations for sanitation: 

 

Portable toilets and showers will be set up at the 
tank/bottled water locations. Toilets will be available all 
hours; showers will be available 6 a.m. to 8 p.m., daily.  

Public Notification Regarding Access to 
Alternative Water Supplies (multiple 
communication methods 
recommended): 

Public Notifications will occur via social media posts and 
radio announcements, in both English and Spanish, on 
multiple sites, including the District’s website.  

 

  



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  13  

10.7 Catastrophic Notification of Emergency Service 
Providers 

If adequate water supply will potentially become unavailable for fire response, medical services, public 
services, etc. then the following emergency providers will be notified as soon as possible to ensure that 
adequate planning, response and assistance may be provided: 

Madera County Fire (559) 675-7799 

County Office of Emergency Services (559) 675-7770 

State Water Resources Control Board  (559) 447-3136 

Golden Valley Unified School District (559) 645-3570 

11 Enforcement 
The GM, or designee, will be responsible for evaluating available data on a consistent basis and 
adequately determining the proper water shortage stage, progress made on conservation efforts, and if 
the appropriate level of water consumption reduction is being met. 
 
Section 10 above outlines the various water conservation measures during each water shortage stage, 
as well as the various enforcements. The penalties for each violation are also outlined in this section and 
can vary depending on the activated Water Shortage Stage. Enforcement of various water conservation 
strategies is carried out by staff members of the water utility including water wastage patrols. 

11.1 Penalties, Charges, Other Enforcement or 
Prohibitions 

No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from this water system for residential, 
commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental, or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any 
provision of this WSCP, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought response stage in 
effect at the time pursuant to action taken by the GM, or designee, in accordance with provisions of the 
Plan. 
 
Any person, including a person classified as a water customer of the water system, in apparent control 
of the property where a violation occurs or originated shall be presumed to be the violator, and proof 
that the violation occurred on the person’s property shall constitute a presumption that the person in 
apparent control of the property committed the violation, but and such person shall have the right to 
show that he/she did not commit the violation. 
 
The District has established the following penalties to address excessive water use as shown in Table 11-
1. Violations of these provisions constitute an incident of water wastage. Each day that one or more of 
the provisions in this WSCP is violated shall constitute a separate offense. If a person is in repeated 
violation of this Plan, the District shall enforce the WSCP through the following enforcement measures. 
  



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  14  

Table 11-1. Enforcement Measures 

Enforcement Measure 
Stage When Penalty 

Takes Effect 

Water Waste Violations 

All stages 

1st Violation: Written Warning 

2nd Violation: $50 Fine 

3rd Violation (within 1 year): $100 Fine 

4th Violation (within 1 year): $200 Fine 

5th and subsequent offenses (within 1 year): $500 Fine 

Additional possible measures: 

(1) Require customer to repair defect to water system within 14 days' 
notice by the District 

(2) Require installation by District of flow restrictors or termination of 
water service for outdoor use. 

(3) Termination of all water service. 

11.1.1 Education and Communication Programs 

All water shortage stages will be reinforced through local and regional public education and awareness 
measures. 

11.1.2 Water Waste Patrols and Irrigation Malfunctions 

The District employs staff that are responsible for ensuring minimized water waste. This could include 
identification of water wasters, irrigation malfunctions, or other water use concerns. The District follows 
up on reports of water waste. 

12 Variances 
The GM, or designee, may grant, in writing, a temporary variance for existing water uses otherwise 
prohibited under this Plan if it is determined that failure to grant such variance would cause an 
emergency condition adversely affecting the health, sanitation, or fire protection for the public or the 
person requesting such variance and if one or more of the following conditions are met: 
 

 Compliance with this Plan cannot be technically accomplished during the duration of the water 
supply shortage or other condition for which the Plan is in effect. 

 Alternative methods can be implemented which will achieve the same level of reduction in 
water use. 

 
Persons requesting an exemption from the provisions of this Ordinance shall file a petition for variance 
with the water system within 5 days after the Plan or a particular drought response stage has been 
invoked. All petitions for variances shall be reviewed by the GM, or designee, and shall include the 
following: 



 Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Root Creek Water District 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group  July 2023  15  

 Name and address of the petitioner(s). 
 Purpose of water use. 
 Specific provision(s) of the Plan from which the petitioner is requesting relief. 
 Detailed statement as to how the specific provision of the Plan adversely affects the petitioner 

or what damage or harm will occur to the petitioner or others.  
 Description of the relief requested. 
 Period of time for which the variance is sought. 
 Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is taking or proposes to take 

to meet the intent of this Plan and the compliance date. 
 Other pertinent information. 

 
A decision on the variance request will be returned to the customer within 30 days.  
 
If such application is approved, the District’s Board of Directors (Board), by resolution, may suspend or 
modify the provision complained of, as applied to such premises, to be effective as of the date of the 
application and continuing during the period of the special circumstances. 

Additionally, the Board may initiate, on its own motion, a variance when it finds that by reason of special 
circumstances any provision of the WSCP should be suspended or modified as applied to a particular 
premises and, by resolution, may order such suspension or modification for such premises during the 
period of such special circumstances, or any part thereof. 

Maximum practical reduction: No relief shall be granted to any customer for any reason in the absence 
of a showing by the customer that the customer has achieved the maximum practical reduction in water 
consumption in the customer’s residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, agricultural, or 
governmental water consumption, as applicable. 
 
 































 
 

455 W Fir Ave • Clovis, CA 93611-0242 • Tel: (559) 449-2700 
www.provostandpritchard.com 

 

G:\Root Creek WD-1249\Ongoing\150 Administration\Board Meetings\Staff Reports\2023\Staff report July 2023.docx 
 

Engineering  Surveying  Planning  Environmental  GIS  Construction Services  Hydrogeology  Consulting 
Fresno    Bakersfield    Visalia    Clovis    Modesto    Los Banos    Chico    Sacramento 

Memorandum 
To:   Julia Stornetta/Board of Directors – Root Creek Water District 

From:   Brian Ehlers 

Subject:  Status report for Activities through the last week June 2023 

Date:   June 30, 2023 

 
Riverstone Development 
Construction status:   

1. Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion – Notice of Substantial Completion 
sent to contractor.  Punch list items were attached to the notice. 

 
2. Waste Water Treatment Plant Dry Pac – Equipment installed. Completion date 

July 16.  Operators are planning to commence operating the equipment next week. 
 

3. Agricultural System 
a. Expansion – Easements executed with San Joaquin River Ranch.  

Contractor has installed approximately 3,000 ft of pipe.  Contractor is behind 
schedule.  Progress has been slow due to water entering the trench. Ranch 
has been helpful in scheduling irrigations.  DWR was onsite to review 
construction activities and was pleased with the project.  Due to conflicts with 
ranch irrigation mains, the alignment at road 39 ½ has been shifted 
approximately 10 feet north of the planned alignment.  This will require 
revision of the pipeline easement.     
Need to execute agreement with Main Ranch Partners 

b. In-Lieu system – The repairs have been completed.  Replacement covers 
have been installed and backfill complete.  The pipeline was placed back in 
service on June 14, 2023. 

c. County – Road 40 – BSK performed exploratory drilling and Lyles cut 
pavement and removed asphalt and stockpiled road base along side of road.  
BSK performed testing within the opened excavation.  Received report from 
BSK and transmitted same to the County for review as well as proposed 
repair method.  Are awaiting a response from the County. 

 
4. Municipal System - 

a. Sequestering Study – The pilot study continues. 
 
Projects in Design 
Project Status: 

1. Groundwater Blending Facility – The project is out to bid. 
Issues to be resolved: 

a.  Purchase of property 



Julia Stornetta/Board of Directors  June 30, 2023 
Status Update  Page 2 of 4 

G:\Root Creek WD-1249\Ongoing\150 Administration\Board Meetings\Staff Reports\2023\Staff report July 2023.docx 

 

 
2. Well 277 – The project will go out to bid next week. 

 Issues to be resolved include:  
a. blending facility being operational. 
b. Coordination with Lennar on raw water pipeline construction 
c. Purchase of outlot 

 
3. Wastewater Treatment Expansion 

a. Disinfection – In progress 
b. Planning for expansion past 400K a day – In progress.   

 
4. 80-acre recharge basin – Nothing to report. 
 
5. Proposition 1 Grant Administration –  Have initiated and submitted multiple 

quarterly reports and pay estimates. 
 
Operational Issues: 

1. Municipal – 
a. a. Water Accounting – 

i. Well 1 flow meter not functioning 
ii. Beacon system designations need to be revised in accordance with 

the Connection Fee Study 
iii. Quarterly drought reporting continues 

b. Well 5  
i. Foot valve being installed 

c. Tank site 
i. Issue with clay valve parts – replaced 
ii. Booster station check valves – slam shut recommend modifying 

d. Water Use  
i. High demands necessitate taking construction water off municipal 

system 
ii. Implemented program to measure flushing flows 

2. Wastewater – Nothing to report 
3. Storm Water – maintenance of the storm basins has been completed 
4. Agriculture –  

a. In Lieu pipeline was put back in service starting June 14th.  Water deliveries 
estimated to approximate 2,200 af by the end of today. 

b. Awaiting response from County on repair to road section 
 

 
 

  



Julia Stornetta/Board of Directors  June 30, 2023 
Status Update  Page 3 of 4 

G:\Root Creek WD-1249\Ongoing\150 Administration\Board Meetings\Staff Reports\2023\Staff report July 2023.docx 

 

Status of current development 

 



Julia Stornetta/Board of Directors  June 30, 2023 
Status Update  Page 4 of 4 

G:\Root Creek WD-1249\Ongoing\150 Administration\Board Meetings\Staff Reports\2023\Staff report July 2023.docx 

 

6. Developer Reviews – 
a. Received, Reviewed and Responded to the following submittals: 

i. Village B 
a. Parcel 1-Precision - Bonadelle 
d. Parcel 8-10 – Harbour – Wilson 
e. Parcel 11-Woodside-Land Design 
f. Parcel 12 – Woodside – Four Creeks 
g. Parcel 14 -17, 21 – Lennar; QK  
 

ii      Village E 
a. Backbone-Precision 
b. Phase 1-Precision 
c. Phase 2-Precision  
d. Phase 3A-Precision 
e. Phase 3B-Percision 

  Issues  
1. Developer asked to use an alternative lining for the sewer manholes in 

Backbone structures – The request is still under review.  
 

7.  Construction Review-issues with construction in support of the following 
construction. 

b. Village B  
i. Parcel 27, 28 Lennar   
ii. Parcel 8,9  Wilson   
iii. Parcel 23  Wilson 
iv. Parcel 5-7  Wathen 
v. Parcel 2-4  Granville 
vi. Parcel 14-17, 21 Lennar 
vii. Parcel 1  Lennar 

 
10.  Other Subjects 

a. Acquisition of construction in progress – At request of Legal counsel work 
with Precision Engineering to develop deeds and easement for transfer of 
properties. 

b. Infrastructure – Gather shape files from developers to build a GIS map of 
facilities. 

c. Execution and acceptance of developer in tract improvements 
d. Water Supply Assessment ongoing 

 



June 2023 Operational Report

Water Meter Connections: May Jun Billed May Jun Sum

Residential 1,160 1,160 Residential 484 950 1,434

Model Homes 18 18 Builder 12 4 16

Commercial 15 15 Models 0 3 3

Irrigation 70 70 Commercial 0 15 15

Agriculture 5 5 Landscape Irr. 61 0 61

Well Sites 6 6 Total 557 972 1,529

Total 1,274 1,274

System Operating Pressure: (psi)

May Jun

High: 62 61

Low: 45 45

Avg: 54 53

Well Production: (Gallons) May Jun May Jun

Well # 1 29,934 39,217 386 319

Well # 2 31,722 35,152 364 356

Well # 5 51,727 61,510 423 364

113,383 135,879

*Feb/Mar usage for Well # 1 is estimated.

Water Deliveries:

Municipal

Landscape Irrigation

Commercial

Agriculture

Construction

Other*

Total

kWh Gallons per kWh

Waste Water: (Gallons) May Jun May Jun

Volume treated 41,969 45,260 148 132

Average daily volume

Waste Water:

Peak Day Flow: (Gallons) 261,084 248,892

6,223,869 5,969,923

200,770 198,997

May Jun

17,895,825 22,238,638

May Jun

439,824 457,776

2,269,357 4,610,522

May Jun

11,294,052 12,306,844

3,892,592 4,863,496

11,561,000 12,505,000

21,869,000 22,412,000

44,990,000 47,417,000

kWh Gallons per kWh

May Jun

11,560,000 12,500,000


	1. July 10 2023 RCWD Agenda
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PUBLIC COMMENT
	3. POTENTIAL CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST
	5. CORRESPONDENCE

	4a. June 12 2023 Bd Minutes JB
	4b. May2023BoardFinancials(P)
	4c. Payment Arrangements JUNE 2023
	4c. RC PA JUNE
	6a. Final Root Creek WSCP2023_0703
	6b. Ag Sys Expnsn CHange Order
	7a. Ehlers Staff Report July 2023
	7b. 2023.06 RCWD Operational Plan



